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MISSION VALLEY BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 
(Dollars in thousands) 
 
 2013 2012

Net income 1,866$                 1,066$                 

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Change in unrealized gains on available for sale 
securities, net of taxes of $335 and $4 in 2013 and 
2012, respectively (478)                     5                            

Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in 
net income, net of taxes of $23 in 2012 -                             (31)                        

Other comprehensive loss (478)                     (26)                        

  Total comprehensive income 1,388$                 1,040$                 
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and $1,789,000 respectively. Loan generation in our 
SBA portfolio continues to be strong with $56 million in 
2016 and $32 million in 2017 with sales in the secondary 
market of $31 million in 2016 and $25 million in 2017. 

For the period ended December 31, 2017, both Mission 
Valley Bancorp and Mission Valley Bank’s capital ratios 
continue to exceed regulatory requirements with Mission 
Valley Bancorp reporting a Total Leverage ratio of 11.2%, 
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio of 12.0%, Tier 1 
Capital ratio of 14.3% and a Total Capital ratio of 15.6%.  
Mission Valley Bank reported a Total Leverage ratio of 
13.9%, Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio of 17.8%, Tier 
1 Capital ratio of 17.8% and a Total Capital ratio of 19.1%. 
Regulatory requirements for a “Well Capitalized” bank 
are 5%, 6.5%, 8% and 10%, respectively.

Our overall performance for 2017 earned Mission Valley a number of accolades. While all are gratifying, one of the 
highpoints of the year was the San Fernando Valley Business Journal honoring Maria Gonzalez, Assistant Vice President 
and E-Banking Manager among the San Fernando Valley’s Most Trusted Business Bankers – Innovation Leadership 
Award. Maria receiving this honor marked the seventh consecutive year that a Mission Valley Banker was named a 
Most Trusted Advisor. 

For the 3rd consecutive year, the Bank achieved the 
designation of “Super Premier Performing Bank” by the 
highly regarded Findley Reports. Early in the year the OTC 
Markets Group announced that Mission Valley Bancorp 
was ranked #5 out of the “Best 50 2018 OTCQX” (an 
annual ranking wherein the OTCQX ranks the top 50 U.S. 
and international companies on the OTCQX marketplace 
based on one-year share price performance). In addition, 
Mission Valley’s performance continued to be recognized 
by the financial industries most respected rating firms: 
Bauer Financial, Veribanc and BankRate.com, all of whom 
continue to rank Mission Valley’s soundness and financial 
strength with their highest ratings.

And finally, in recognition of the Bank’s strong performance, and in appreciation of our shareholder’s loyalty, Mission 
Valley Bancorp declared and paid a cash dividend of $0.10 per common share on December 15, 2017.

As we enter into 2018, our balance sheet is well positioned to benefit from a higher interest rate environment.  We have 
a sound, diversified balance sheet, a solid capital base to carry us forward and a tremendous team dedicated to our 
success and to the success of our clients and shareholders. Mission Valley Bancorp is well positioned to maintain our 
course of steady and controlled growth throughout 2018 and beyond.  
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Sincerely,

President & CEO
Mission Valley Bancorp
Mission Valley Bank

To our Shareholders, Clients & Friends, 
On behalf of Management and the Board of Directors, I am pleased to share that Mission Valley Bancorp recorded the 
most profitable year in its history.  Net earnings reached $3,551,000 or $1.07 per diluted share, a 2% increase over 
our 2016 performance of $3,478,000 or $1.04 per diluted share. It should also be noted that the record net earnings 
reported for 2017 reflect the negative impact of the December 2017 tax reform legislation. Financial accounting 
standards requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be remeasured when income tax rates change. Accordingly, this 
legislation had an immediate and direct impact of lowering our organization’s 2017 net earnings by $310,000.

Following one rate hike of 25 basis points at the end of 
2016, the Federal Reserve Bank began steady increases in 
interest rates, raising them three times over the course of 
2017. While there was initially very little market reaction, 
continued rate increases coupled with ongoing geo-
political undercurrents introduced volatility back into the 
markets for the first time in many years. This was further 
evidenced in early 2018 with historic swings in market 
activity that to date we are continuing to experience.   

Over the course of the year, Mission Valley experienced 
nominal asset growth primarily attributable to timing 
differences in the sale of the guaranteed portion of 
SBA loans, which caused significant variations when 
comparing loans outstanding over quarter and year end reporting periods. Over the course of 2017, Mission Valley 
generated over $56.7 million in new loans, which includes $32 million in SBA loans. While loan demand fluctuated 
throughout 2017, loan quality continued to improve with Classified Assets to Tier 1 Capital plus ALLL falling to 7.52% 
compared to 7.70% at December 31, 2016. Total assets increased a modest 1.5% to a record high of $330 million at 
December 31, 2017 compared to $325 million at December 31, 2016. Net loans grew by $3 million to $242 million as of 
December 31, 2017 as compared to $239 million at year end 2016. Total deposits grew to $280 million as of December 
31, 2017 as compared to $278 million reported at year end 2016.   

With the steady rise in interest rates, Mission Valley 
experienced an increase in total interest income, which 
climbed to $14.2 million for the year ended 2017 
compared to $12.7 million for the same period ended 
2016, representing a $1.4 million or 11.2% increase. 
Interest expense on deposits continued to decline, falling 
$43,000 to $353,000 at year end.  

During the third quarter of 2017 the Company fully 
redeemed its $10.3 million Community Development 
Capital Investment (CDCI) (Formerly TARP/CPP) to the 
Treasury in advance of its contractually scheduled rate 
increase to 9% from the previous rate of 2%. Concurrently, 
we issued $10.3 million of private debt (notes payable) 

with a 60-month term and average interest rate of 5.19%. As a result, other interest expense increased by $265,000 
to $402,000 for the year. The net result was a 42% increase in total interest expense to $755,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 as compared to $533,000 for the year ended 2016.  

While service charges and other operating income collectively grew more than $366,000 during 2017, at December 31, 
2017 total non-interest income closed the year at $4.1 million, 12% lower than the $4.6 million reported as of December 
31, 2016. The reduction in income is related to the net gain on sale of SBA loans sold in 2017 versus 2016 of $871,000  
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Recent Recognitions & Industry Accolades 
 

2018 - 1st Quarter 
The Findley Reports named Mission Valley Bank as a Superior Premier Performing Bank for 2017 

www.Findley-Reports.com 
 

OTCQX listed Mission Valley Bancorp among the “Best 50 – OTCQX – 2018” 
www.otcmarkets.com 

 
Bauer Financial, Inc. named Mission Valley Bank among the Strongest Financial Institutions in the Nation 

www.BauerFinancial.com  
 

Mission Valley Bancorp announced Record Earnings for Year End 2017 
 
 

2017 
 

BankRate.Com rated Mission Valley Bank as 5 Star Superior 
www.BankRate.com  

 
Bauer Financial, Inc. named Mission Valley Bank 5-Star Superior placing them among the  

Strongest Financial Institutions in the Nation 
www.BauerFinancial.com  

 
DepositAccounts.com rated Mission Valley Bank with an “A” Rating for 2017 

www.DepositAccounts.com  
 

The Findley Reports named Mission Valley Bank as a Superior Premier Performing Bank for 2016 
www.Findley-Reports.com 

 
MyBankTracker rated Mission Valley Bank “Excellent” in Financial Health 

www.MyBankTracker.com 
 

Veribanc named Mission Valley Bank as a “Blue Ribbon Bank” with the Commendation of Excellence 
www.Veribanc.com 

 
Fit Small Business named Mission Valley Bank one of the Top 100 Best SBA Lenders 

www.FitSmallBusiness.com  
 

Mission Valley Bank’s Maria Gonzalez (Assistant Vice President and E-Banking Manager)  
named one of the Valley’s Most Trusted Advisors – Innovation and Leadership Award, by the  

San Fernando Valley Business Journal marking Mission Valley’s 7th Consecutive Year receiving this honor 
www.sfvbj.com 

 
Mission Valley Bancorp announced Cash Dividend for 2017 

 
Mission Valley Bancorp announced Record Earnings for Year End 2016 
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Mission Valley Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition  

December 31, 2017 and 2016  
(In Thousands, Except Share Data) 

 

 

 

2017 2016
 

Cash and due from banks 18,850$                 15,916$               

Federal funds sold 35,790                   36,395                 

   Total cash and cash equivalents 54,640                   52,311                 

Interest bearing deposits in other banks 2,725                     6,485                   

Investment securities:

Available-for-sale, at fair value 14,805                   15,158                 

Held-to-maturity, at amortized cost 79                          245                      

Loans, net 209,791                 215,778               

Loans held for sale 32,584                   23,615                 

Premises and equipment, net 269                        284                      

Deferred tax asset, net 389                        698                      

Bank owned life insurance 9,754                     6,557                   

Restricted equity securities 1,874                     1,660                   

Accrued interest receivable 900                        764                      

Other assets 2,589                     1,843                   

TOTAL ASSETS 330,399$               325,398$             

Liabilities
Deposits:

Non-interest bearing demand 170,922$               156,248$             

Interest-bearing demand 70,239                   73,654                 

Savings 20,421                   14,293                 

Time deposits under $250,000 7,804                     14,460                 

Time deposits $250,000 and over 10,861                   19,324                 

Total deposits 280,247                 277,979               

Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures 6,186                     6,186                   

Notes payable 10,336                   -                          

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 3,214                     3,634                   

Total liabilities 299,983                 287,799               

Commitments and contingencies - Note 11  

Shareholders' Equity
Preferred stock - 10,000,000 shares authorized; zero and 10,336

shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2017 and 2016

Series C, designated -                            5,500                   

Series D, designated -                            4,836                   

Common stock - 10,000,000 shares authorized; no par value;

3,208,365 and 3,154,865 shares issued and outstanding

 at December 31, 2017 and 2016 12,747                   12,747                 

Additional paid in capital 1,199                     1,115                   

Retained earnings 16,598                   13,527                 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (128)                      (126)                    

Total shareholders' equity 30,416                   37,599                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 330,399$               325,398$             

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

 

1 

 
Report of Independent Auditors 
 

 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Mission Valley Bancorp 
 
 
Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mission Valley Bancorp and its 
subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Mission Valley Bancorp and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the 
results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

 
 

Los Angeles, California 
March 16, 2018 
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Mission Valley Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Income  
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 
 

 

 

 2017 2016
INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loans 13,298$                 12,009$                 

Interest on investment securities 296                        304                        

Other interest income 576                        428                        

Total interest income 14,170                   12,741                   

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits 353                        396                        

Interest on borrowings 402                        137                        

Total interest expense 755                        533                        

NET INTEREST INCOME 13,415                   12,208                   

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 237                        293                        

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR
LOAN LOSSES 13,178                   11,915                   

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Service charges and other income 1,789                     1,627                     

Gain on sale of loans 871                        1,789                     

Net merchant income 741                        792                        

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance 245                        201                        

Other income 442                        231                        

Total non-interest income 4,088                     4,640                     

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 6,435                     6,474                     

Legal, professional, and consulting 1,003                     839                        

Furniture and equipment 812                        822                        

Data processing 615                        555                        

Occupancy and equipment expenses 559                        545                        

Advertising 198                        216                        

Insurance 159                        180                        

Other operating expenses 1,497                     1,177                     

Total non-interest expenses 11,278                   10,808                   

NET INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 5,988                     5,747                     

Provision for income taxes 2,437                     2,269                     

NET INCOME 3,551                     3,478                     

Preferred stock dividends (159)                       (207)                       

NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS 3,392$                   3,271$                   

Earnings per share available to 
common shareholders - basic and diluted 1.07$                     1.04$                     

 

See accompanying notes. 4 

Mission Valley Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(In Thousands) 

 

 

 
 

 

 2017 2016
NET INCOME 3,551$               3,478$               

Other comprehensive loss:

Change in unrealized losses on available for sale 

securities, net of taxes of $1 and $47 in 2017 and 

2016, respectively (2)                       (66)                     

Other comprehensive loss (2)                       (66)                     

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3,549$               3,412$               
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Mission Valley Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(In Thousands) 

 

 

 
 

 

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 3,551$               3,478$               

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash   

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 149                    129                    

Provision for loan losses 237                    293                    

Amortization of deferred loan fees, costs, and premium, net 1,025                 1,506                 

Origination of loans held for sale (18,672)              (57,180)              

Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 18,499               34,098               

Gain on sale of loans held for sale (871)                   (1,789)                

Accretion and amortization on investments 53                      (30)                     

Shared-based compensation expense 84                      303                    

Deferred taxes 285                    18                      

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance (3,197)                (201)                   

Net change in:

Accrued interest receivable and other assets (857)                   (623)                   

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities (420)                   885                    

Net cash used in operating activities (134)                   (19,113)              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Changes in interest bearing deposits in other banks, net 3,760                 1,364                 

Purchases of available-for-sale investments (3,401)                (6,604)                

Proceeds from repayments, sales, and maturities of 

 available-for-sale investments 3,698                 3,972                 

Proceeds from prepayments and maturities of 

held-to-maturity investments 166                    3,751                 

Net purchases of restricted equity securities (214)                   (5)                       

Net increase in loans (3,200)                (16,087)              

Purchases of premises and equipment (134)                   (167)                   

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 675                    (13,776)              

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease in time deposits (15,119)              (10,735)              

Increase in notes payable 10,336               -                         

Retirement of preferred stock (10,336)              -                         

Net increase in other deposits 17,387               43,453               

Dividends paid on preferred stock (159)                   (207)                   

Dividends on common stock (321)                   (236)                   

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,788                 32,275               

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,329                 (614)                   

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 52,311               52,925               

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 54,640$             52,311$             

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid 716$                  531$                  

Taxes paid 3,331                 1,683                 

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Change in unrealized gain and losses on investments available-for-sale 3                        113                    

  5
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MISSION VALLEY BANCORP  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

8 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Nature of operations – Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 

the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 

common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 

transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005. The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 

wholly owned by the Company. The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 

corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has two branches located in Sun Valley and Santa 

Clarita, California. The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco to 

engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 

 

Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 

the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”) and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

(“FDIC”).  

 

Basis of presentation and consolidation – The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry. The consolidated financial statements include 

the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank. All significant 

intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

 

In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 

Mission Valley Statutory Trust I. The Company follows GAAP that determines when variable interest 

entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission Valley Statutory Trust I should not be 

consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial condition include $6,186,000 as junior 

subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in other assets in the consolidated statements 

of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported 

using the cost method.  

 
Use of estimates – The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated statements of 

financial condition and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to 

significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, valuation 

of investment securities, valuation of deferred tax assets and share-based compensation. 

 

Concentrations of credit risk – Assets and liabilities that subject the Company to concentrations of 

credit risk consist of interest-bearing deposits at other banks, investments available-for-sale, loans and 

deposits. Most of the Company’s customers are located within Los Angeles County and surrounding 

areas. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have any significant 

concentrations in its business with any one customer.  
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has cash deposits at other financial institutions in 

excess of the FDIC insured limits. The Company places these deposits with major financial institutions 

and monitors the financial condition of these institutions. Management believes the risk of loss associated 

with such deposits to be minimal.  

 

The Company's loan portfolio consists primarily of loans to borrowers within Southern California. Although 

the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial part of the debtors’ ability to honor their 

contracts is dependent upon the economic conditions in this region. Real estate secured loans 

represented approximately 56% of total gross loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016. Management has 

taken this factor into account in the determination of the allowance for loan losses. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents – For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 

statements of financial condition and the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash 

equivalents include cash, due from banks and federal funds sold, all of which have original maturities of 

ninety days or less. 

 

Banking regulations require that banks maintain a percentage of their deposits as reserves in cash or on 

deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. The Company was in compliance with its reserve requirements 

as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
 

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks – Interest-bearing deposits in other banks are purchased with 

an original maturity date greater than ninety days and are carried at amortized cost. Interest-bearing 

deposits in other banks include certificates of deposits in major financial institutions located throughout 

the United States of America. 

 
Investment securities – In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company is 

required to designate its readily marketable investments securities as “held-to-maturity”, “available-for-

sale”, or “trading”. The Company did not designate any of its investments as trading securities. Debt 

securities are classified as held to maturity if the Company has both the intent and ability to hold those 

securities to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or changes in general 

economic conditions. These securities are carried at cost adjusted for amortization of premium and 

accretion of discount, computed by the effective interest method over their contractual lives. Debt 

securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 

excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity as an item of 

other comprehensive income. Investment transactions are recorded on the trade settlement date. Gains 

and losses realized on disposition of investment securities are recognized at the time of sale based upon 

the specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the 

interest method over the period to maturity.  
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Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
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subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
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subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Interest income from the investment securities portfolio is accrued as earned including the accretion of 

discounts and the amortization of premiums based on the original cost of each security owned. Discounts 

and premiums are accreted and amortized on a method that approximates the effective interest method 

to the maturity date of the security with the exception of the mortgage backed securities. Discounts and 

premiums on mortgage-backed securities are accreted and amortized to the expected maturity date of the 

investment security. Realized gains or losses on the sale of investment and mortgage-backed securities 

are reported in the consolidated statement of operations as of the trade date and determined using the 

amortized cost of the specific security sold. Declines in the fair value of individual securities below their 

cost that are deemed other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair 

value.  

 

Management performs regular impairment analyses on the securities portfolio in accordance with 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) guidance 

related to the consideration of impairment related to certain debt and equity securities. If it is probable that 

the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the debt 

security not impaired at acquisition, an other-than-temporary impairment is considered to have occurred. 

When an other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) occurs, the cost basis of the security is written down 

to its fair value (as the new cost basis) and the write-down is accounted for as a realized loss if it is credit 

related. In assessing whether impairment represents OTTI, the Company must consider whether it 

intends to sell a security or if it is likely that they would be required to sell the security before recovery of 

the amortized cost basis of the investment, which may be maturity. For debt securities, if the Company 

intends to sell the security or it is likely that a sale of the security may be required before recovering the 

cost basis, the entire impairment loss would be charged to results of operations as an OTTI. If the 

Company does not intend to sell the security and it is not likely the sale of the security is required by the 

Company, and the Company does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security, 

only the portion of the impairment loss representing credit losses would be charged to results of 

operations. The credit loss on a security is measured as the difference between the amortized cost basis 

and the present value of the cash flows to be expected to be collected. Projected cash flows are 

discounted by the original or current effective interest rate depending on the nature of the security being 

measured for potential OTTI. The remaining impairment related to other factors, the difference between 

the present value of the cash flows to be expected to be collected and fair value, is recognized as a 

charge to other comprehensive income (“OCI”).  
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Loans – Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or 

until maturity or payoff are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances reduced by any charge-

offs or specific valuation amounts and net of any deferred fees or costs on originated loans, or 

unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest income on loans is calculated by the 

simple-interest method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding. Loan origination fees and 

origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment to yield over the life of the related loan 

using the effective interest method. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan 

becomes ninety-days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process of collection. In some 

cases, loans can be placed on nonaccrual status or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal 

or interest is considered doubtful. Subsequent collections of interest are applied to unpaid balances or 

included in interest income based upon management’s assessment of the likelihood that principal will be 

collected. 

 

When loans are placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed 

against current period interest income. Income on nonaccrual loans is subsequently recognized only to 

the extent that cash is received and the loan’s principal balance is deemed collectible. Interest accruals 

are resumed on such loans only when they are brought current with respect to interest and principal and 

when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to all principal 

and interest.  

 

A loan is considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will not be able to collect all principal 

and interest amounts due according to the loan's contractual terms based upon available information and 

events. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral 

value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. The amount 

of the valuation allowance for impaired loans is determined by comparing the recorded investment in 

each loan with its value measured by one of three methods: (i) the estimated present value of total 

expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate; (ii) the loan's observable 

market price, if available from a secondary market; or (iii) by the fair value of the underlying collateral if 

the loan is collateral dependent. 

 

If the measure of impairment for an impaired loan is less than the related recorded investment, the 

shortfall is charged off or a specific valuation allowance (impairment allowance) is established as a 

component of the allowance for loan losses through a charge to the provision for loan losses. Subsequent 

permitted adjustments to the impairment allowance are made through a corresponding charge or credit to 

the provision for loan losses. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Loans are reported as restructured when the Company grants concession(s) to a borrower experiencing 

financial difficulties that it would not otherwise consider. Examples of such concession include 

forgiveness of principal or accrued interest, extending the maturity date(s), or providing a lower interest 

rate than would be normally available for a transaction of similar risk. As a result of these concessions, 

restructured loans are impaired as the Company will not collect all amounts due, both principal and 

interest, in accordance with the terms of the original loan agreement. Impairment allowances on non-

collateral dependent restructured loans are measured by comparing the present value of expected future 

cash flows on the restructured loans discounted at the interest rate of the original loan agreement to the 

loan’s carrying value. These impairment allowances are recognized as a specific component to be 

provided for in the allowance for loan losses. 

 

Allowance for loan losses – The provision for loan losses charged to results of operations is an amount 

sufficient to bring the allowance for loan losses to an estimated balance considered adequate to absorb 

probable losses inherent in the portfolio at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Loan losses 

are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance is 

confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 

management’s periodic review of the collectability of the loans that considers historical experience, the 

nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, 

estimated value of any underlying collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. The evaluation is 

inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more 

information becomes available. The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components. 

The specific component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. The general component covers 

non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An 

unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of 

probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent 

in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the 

portfolio.  

 

In addition, bank regulatory authorities, as part of their periodic examination of the Company, may require 

additional charges to the provision for loan and lease losses in future periods if warranted as a result of 

their review. A significant decline in real estate market values may require an increase in the allowance 

for loan and lease losses. The prolonged U.S. recession, the housing market downturn, and declining real 

estate values in our markets have negatively impacted aspects of the Company’s residential 

development, commercial real estate, commercial construction and commercial loan portfolios. A 

continued deterioration in the Company’s markets may adversely affect its loan portfolio and may lead to 

additional charges to the provision for loan losses. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Loans held for sale and non-guaranteed portion of SBA loans – The portions of U.S. Small Business 

Administration (“SBA”) loans that are guaranteed by the SBA are classified by management as loans held 

for sale since the Company intends to sell these loans. Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of 

aggregate cost or estimated fair value. The fair value of SBA loans held for sale is based primarily on 

prices that secondary markets are currently offering for loans with similar characteristics. Net unrealized 

losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance through a charge to income. The carrying 

value of SBA loans held for sale is net of premiums as well as deferred origination fees and costs. 

Premiums and net origination fees and costs are deferred and included in the basis of the loans in 

calculating gains and losses upon sale. SBA loans are generally secured by the borrowing entities’ assets 

such as accounts receivable, property and equipment, and other business assets. The Company 

generally recognizes gains or losses on these loan sales based on the difference between the sales 

proceeds received and the allocated carrying value of the loans sold (which can include deferred 

premiums and net origination fees and costs). The non-guaranteed portion of SBA loans is not typically 

sold by the Company and is classified as held for investment. In connection with the Company’s SBA 

lending activities, the Company recognizes servicing assets when servicing rights are retained. The 

Company initially recognizes and measures at fair value servicing rights obtained from SBA loan sales. 

The Company subsequently measures these servicing assets by using the amortization method, which 

amortizes servicing assets in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income. The 

amortization of the servicing assets is analyzed periodically and is adjusted to reflect changes in 

prepayment rates and other estimates. The servicing asset is included in other assets on the consolidated 

statements of financial condition and the related amortization is net against other non-operating income in 

the consolidated statements of income. 

 
Premises and equipment – Premises and equipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, 

which typically range from three to seven years for furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are 

amortized over the shorter of the remaining lease term and the subsequent option period that is likely to 

be exercised or the estimated useful lives of the leasehold improvements.  

 

Expenditures for betterments or major repairs are capitalized and those for ordinary repairs and 

maintenance are charged to results of operations as incurred. Gains and losses on dispositions are 

included in current results of operations. 

 

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amounts of such assets may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected 

future cash flows is less than the stated amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized for the 

difference between the fair value of the asset and its carrying amount. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
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Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Other real estate owned – Assets acquired in settlement of loans are recorded at fair value less 

estimated disposal costs. Any excess of the carrying amount of the loan over the fair value of the asset is 

charged against the allowance for loan losses at the time of transfer. Subsequent to the transfer, any 

losses on disposition or write-downs as a result of declines in market value of specific assets are charged 

against current results of operations. Real estate acquired through foreclosure sale, deed-in-lieu of 

foreclosure, and bank property for which banking use is no longer contemplated are classified as other 

real estate owned on the consolidated statements of financial condition. Operating income and expenses 

incurred on these properties are reflected in current earnings within non-interest expense. There were no 

other real estate owned properties that were acquired during the years ended 2017 and 2016. 

 

Income taxes – The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes. The 

objective of the asset and liability method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the 

temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the income tax basis of the Company’s 

assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or 

settled. Changes in enacted tax rates result in a revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities through 

the income tax provision in the period that the tax rate changes are enacted. 

 
The Company’s annual tax rate is based on its income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities 

available in which it operates. Tax laws are complex and subject to different interpretations by the 

taxpayer and respective governmental taxing authorities. Significant judgment is required in determining 

tax expense and in evaluating tax positions, including evaluating uncertainties. Accounting for income 

taxes prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement 

recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.  

 

Benefits from tax positions are recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely than not 

that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would 

have full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not 

recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of 

being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company reviews its tax positions periodically and adjusts 

the balances as new information becomes available. It is the Company’s policy to recognize interest and 

penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as components of other operating expenses in the 

income statement.  

 

Deferred income tax assets represent amounts available to reduce income taxes payable on taxable 

income in future years. Such assets arise because of temporary differences between the financial 

reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, as well as from net operating loss and tax credit carry 

forwards. The Company evaluates the recoverability of these future tax deductions by assessing the 

adequacy of future expected taxable income from all sources, including reversal of taxable temporary 

differences, forecasted operating earnings and available tax planning strategies. These sources of 

income inherently rely heavily on estimates. The Company uses historical experience and short and long-

range business forecasts to provide insight. Deferred tax assets could be reduced in the near term if 

estimates of taxable income are significantly reduced or available tax planning strategies are no longer 

viable.   
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Bank owned life insuranceThe Company invests in Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”). BOLI 

involves the purchasing of life insurance by the Company on a chosen group of employees. The 

Company is the owner and beneficiary of these policies. BOLI is recorded as an asset at cash surrender 

value. Increases in the cash value of these policies, as well as insurance proceeds received, are recorded 

in other non-interest income and are not subject to income tax. 

 

Restricted equity securities – At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company held $1,343,000 and 

$1,129,000, respectively, of shares of Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”). The Company evaluates its 

investment in FHLB stock for impairment on a periodic basis. The FHLB has been in compliance with all 

of its regulatory capital requirements at the end of 2017 and 2016. The Company has not recorded an 

impairment on its investment of FHLB stock during 2017 and 2016.  
 

The Company also invests in the stock of Pacific Coast Bankers Bank (“PCBB”) in connection with its 

correspondent banking arrangement with PCBB. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company held 

approximately $531,000, par value, of PCBB stock. PCBB stock is restricted as to purchase, sale and 

redemption.  

 

The investments in FHLB stock, and PCBB stock are carried as cost method investments as of December 

31, 2017 and 2016. 

 

Financial instruments – In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off-balance 

sheet agreements consisting of commitments to extend credit, commercial letters of credit, and standby 

letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded 

or the related fees are incurred or received. 

 

Share-based compensation – The Company accounts for stock option awards whereby the 

compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the statements of 

operations based upon the grant-date fair value of the stock options granted by the Company. The effect 

of stock-based accounting rules are to require entities to measure the cost of employee services received 

in exchange for stock options and to recognize the cost over the period the employee is required to 

provide services for the award. The fair value of stock options are measured using a Black-Sholes pricing 

model.  

 

The Company’s 2017 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Grant Plan provides for granting of restricted 

stock units for the benefit of certain members of the board of directors, executives and key employees of 

the Company and its affiliates. Restricted stock grants are subject to performance-based vesting as well 

as other approved vesting conditions. Compensation expense is recognized over the service period to the 

extent restricted stock units are expected to vest. 

 

Advertising costs – Advertising costs of $198,000 and $216,000 for the years ended December 31, 

2017 and 2016, respectively, were expensed as incurred. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Comprehensive income – Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive 

income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) consists of unrealized gains and losses on securities 

available-for-sale which is also recognized as a separate component of consolidated shareholders’ 

equity. 

 

Common stock – The Company has authorized 10 million shares of common stock. Each share entitles 

the holder to one vote. There are no dividend or liquidation preferences, participation rights, call prices or 

dates, conversion prices or rates, sinking fund requirements, or unusual voting rights associated with 

these shares. 

 

Preferred stock – The Company has authorized 10 million shares of preferred stock. Refer to Note 15 – 

U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program, Community Development Capital Initiative Program and 

Mandatory Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock for details pertaining to preferred stock issued. 

 
Earnings per share (“EPS”) – Earnings per share amounts have been computed using the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding of common stock for the purposes of computing basic EPS. There 

were no common stock equivalents outstanding that would have a dilutive impact on EPS at December 

31, 2017 or 2016. Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by 

the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Basic EPS excludes the 

dilutive effect that could occur if any securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised 

or converted into or resulted in the issuance of common stock. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution 

that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock, such as stock options, result in the 

issuance of common stock which shares in the earnings available to common shareholders of the 

Company. The treasury stock method is applied to determine the dilutive effect of stock options in 

computing dilutive earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated as follows: 

 

 
 

  

2017 2016
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income 3,551$           3,478$           

Dividends paid on preferred stock (159)               (207)               

Net income available to common shareholders 3,392             3,271             

Weighted average common shares outstanding 3,179             3,155             

Earnings per share available 

   to common shareholders - basic 1.07$             1.04$             
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Fair value measurements – FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair 

value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-

level hierarchy for disclosure of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value. The classification of assets 

and liabilities within the hierarchy is based on whether the inputs to the valuation methodology used for 

measurement are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market-derived or market-based 

information obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our estimates about 

market data. In general, fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices for identical assets 

or liabilities traded in active markets that the Company has the ability to access. Fair values determined 

by Level 2 inputs utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and 

liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. Level 3 

inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, 

market activity for the asset or liability. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into 

different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which 

the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of 

a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors 

specific to the asset or liability. 

 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements – In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which creates Topic 606 and supersedes Topic 

605, Revenue Recognition. The core principle of Topic 606 is that an entity recognizes revenue to depict 

the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 

which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In general, the new 

guidance requires companies to use more judgment and make more estimates than under current 

guidance, including identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable 

consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate 

performance obligation. The standard is effective for public entities for interim and annual periods 

beginning after December 15, 2016; early adoption is not permitted. For financial reporting purposes, the 

standard allows for either full retrospective adoption, meaning the standard is applied to all of the periods 

presented, or modified retrospective adoption, meaning the standard is applied only to the most current 

period presented in the financial statements with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 

recognized at the date of initial application. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a material 

impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10): 

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The new guidance is intended 

to improve the recognition and measurement of financial instruments. This ASU requires equity 

investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting, or those that result in 

consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net 

income. In addition, the amendment requires public business entities to use the exit price notion when 

measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes and requires separate 

presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial 

asset (i.e., securities or loans and receivables) on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the 

financial statements. This ASU also eliminates the requirement for public business entities to disclose the 

method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for 

financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet. The amendment also requires a 

reporting organization to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total 

change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument specific credit risk (also 

referred to as “own credit”) when the organization has elected to measure the liability at fair value in 

accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments. ASU No. 2016-01 is effective for financial 

statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those 

fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for certain provisions. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-01 is not 

expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new guidance requires a 
lessee to recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments and a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. The guidance separates 
leases into finance and operating categories, both of which are required to be recognized as an asset and 
liability on the financial statements. The asset and liability are initially measured at the present value of 
the lease payments, in the statement of financial position for both finance and operating leases. For 
finance leases, lessees are to recognize interest on the lease liability separate from amortization of the 
right-of-use asset in the statement of comprehensive income, and classify repayments of the principal 
portion of the lease liability within financing activities and payments of interest on the lease liability and 
variable lease payments within operating activities in the statement of cash flows. For operating leases, 
lessees are to recognize a single lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the 
lease term on a generally straight-line basis, and all cash payments are to be classified within operating 
activities in the statement of cash flows. The amendments of this Update are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2018, for public business entities. The Company is currently evaluating the 
impact this ASU will have on the Company’s financial statements. The Company leases three buildings 
and offices under non-cancelable operating leases, the majority of which will be subject to this ASU. 
While the Company has not quantified the impact to its balance sheet, it does expect the adoption of this 
ASU will result in a gross-up in its balance sheet as a result of recording a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability for these leases. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

In June 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. 

Current GAAP requires an “incurred loss” methodology for recognizing credit losses that delays 

recognition until it is probable a loss has been incurred. The main objective of this ASU is to provide 

financial statement users with more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on 

financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting 

date. The amendments in this ASU replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP 

with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of 

reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. The amendments in this ASU 

require a financial asset (or group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented 

at the net amount expected to be collected. The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is 

deducted from the amortized cost basis of the financial asset(s) to present the net carrying value at the 

amount expected to be collected on the financial asset. The measurement of expected credit losses will 

be based on relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, 

and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. The 

amendments in this ASU broaden the information that an entity must consider in developing its expected 

credit loss estimate for assets measured either collectively or individually. The use of forecasted 

information incorporates more timely information in the estimate of expected credit loss, which will be 

more decision useful to users of the financial statements. The amendments in this ASU will be effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. 

The Company is still evaluating the effects this ASU will have on the Company’s Consolidated Financial 

Statements. While the Company has not quantified the impact of this ASU, it does expect changing from 

the current incurred loss model to an expected loss model will result in an earlier recognition of losses. 

 
Reclassification – Certain amounts from the prior year footnotes have been reclassified, in order to 
conform to the current year presentation. There was no impact on net income or retained earnings.  
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
  

 

 

 

Mission Valley Bancorp  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

 

19 

Note 2 – Investment Securities 
 

The carrying amounts of securities and their estimated fair values at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 

as follows:  

 

 
 

  

(In thousands)

Amortized       
Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Available-for-Sale
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 13,832$        3$                 (208)$            13,627$        

Municipal investments 392               4                   -                    396               

Mutual fund investments 800               -                    (18)                782               

15,024$        7$                 (226)$            14,805$        

(In thousands)

Amortized       
Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Held-to-Maturity
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 79$               -$                  -$                  79$               

79$               -$                  -$                  79$               

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017
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Note 2 – Investment Securities (continued) 
 

 
 

  

(In thousands)

Amortized       
Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Available-for-Sale
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 14,070$        13$               (211)$            13,872$        

Municipal investments 503               1                   -                    504               

Mutual fund investments 800               -                    (18)                782               

15,373$        14$               (229)$            15,158$        

(In thousands)

Amortized       
Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Held-to-Maturity
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 245$             -$                  -$                  245$             

245$             -$                  -$                  245$             

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 2 – Investment Securities (continued) 
 

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 

by contractual maturity, are shown below. Mutual fund investments which do not have stated maturities 

are included in the due in more than five years category. Expected and actual maturities may differ from 

contractual maturities because issuers or borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with 

or without prepayment penalties. 

 

 
There were no sales of available-for-sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2017 or 2016.  

 

 

  

Amortized 
Cost

Estimated        
Fair Value

Amortized 
Cost

Estimated        
Fair Value

(In thousands)

Available-for-Sale
Due in one year or less 23$               23$               503$             504$             

Due from one to five years 415               412               332               333               

Due in more than five years 14,586          14,370          14,538          14,321          

15,024$        14,805$        15,373$        15,158$        

Amortized 
Cost

Estimated        
Fair Value

Amortized 
Cost

Estimated        
Fair Value

(In thousands)

Held-to-Maturity
Due in one year or less 33$               33$               -$                  -$                  

Due from one to five years 46                 46                 245               245               

79$               79$               245$             245$             

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
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Note 2 – Investment Securities (continued) 
 

Information pertaining to investment securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2017 and 

2016 aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in 

continuous loss position is as follows: 

 

 
There were twenty five and fourteen available-for-sale and four held-to-maturity securities in an 

unrealized loss position for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There were eight 

available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position for twelve months or more for the year ended 

December 31, 2017 and no available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position for twelve months 

or more for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

 

Management evaluates securities for OTTI at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when 

economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time 

and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term 

prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer 

for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value, which may be maturity. In 

analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by the 

federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the 

results of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition. The Company does not have any securities that were 

considered to be other than temporarily impaired in 2017 or 2016. 

  

(In thousands)

Estimated  
Fair Value

Gross   
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Gross   
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Gross   
Unrealized 

Losses
Available-for-Sale
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 6,738$          (68)$              6,532$          (140)$            13,270$          (208)$               

Mutual Fund Investments -                    -                    782               (18)                782                 (18)                    

6,738$          (68)$              7,314$          (158)$            14,052$          (226)$               

(In thousands)

Estimated  
Fair Value

 Unrealized 
Losses

Estimated  
Fair Value

Gross   
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

Gross   
Unrealized 

Losses
Available-for-Sale
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 12,393$        (211)$            -$                  -$                  12,393$          (211)$               

Mutual Fund Investments 782               (18)                -                    -                    782                 (18)                    

13,175$        (229)$            -$                  -$                  13,175$          (229)$               

12 months or longer Total

Less Than 12 Months

Less Than 12 Months

12 months or longer
2017

Total

2016



28 29

 
 

 

MISSION VALLEY BANCORP  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

8 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses  
 

The composition of the Company’s loan portfolio at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was as follows: 

 

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is determined by the Company’s management based upon 

evaluation and review of credit quality of the loan portfolio, consideration of historical loss experience, 

relevant internal and external factors that affect the collection of a loan, and other pertinent factors. The 

allowance for loan loss analysis is a formula methodology based upon assigning a risk rating to each loan 

upon loan origination and is periodically reassessed and validated during the term of the loan through the 

Company’s credit review processes. The Company’s risk rating methodology assigns risk ratings ranging 

from 1 to 9 where a higher rating represents a higher risk. 

 

Additionally, the Company’s management utilizes qualitative adjustments to the allowance for loan loss 

analysis in order to systematically quantify the credit risk impact of other trends and changes within the 

loan portfolio. The qualitative factors consider the following nine factors, which are patterned after the 

guidelines provided under the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Interagency Policy 

Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses issued in 2006: 

 

• Changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in underwriting standards and 

collection, charge-off, and recovery practices not considered elsewhere in estimating credit losses; 

 

• Changes in international, national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and 
developments that affect the collectability of the portfolio, including the condition of various market 
segments; 

 

  

(In thousands) 2017 2016
Real estate loans 120,369$           123,988$           

Commercial loans 38,859               41,650               

Consumer loans 2,918                 3,110                 

SBA loans 31,691               28,886               

Accounts Receivable loans 19,110               16,040               

Leasing 121                    174                    

Advanced Restaurant Financing 823                    6,109                 

Overdrafts 285                    39                      

Gross loans 214,176             219,996             

Less:

   Allowance for loan losses 3,532                 3,547                 

   Discount on retained loans 1,635                 1,317                 

   Deferred loan costs, net (782)                   (646)                   

Net loans 209,791$           215,778$           
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

• Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio and in the terms of loans; 

 

• Changes in the experience and ability of lending management and other relevant staff; 

 

• Changes in the volume and severity of past due loans, the volume of nonaccrual loans, and the 

volume and severity of adversely classified or graded loans; 

 

• Changes in the quality of the institution’s loan review system; 

 

• Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans; 

 

• The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit, and changes in the level of such 

concentrations; and  

 

• The effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the 

level of estimated credit losses in the institutions’ existing portfolio. 

 

The Company also establishes specific loss allowances for loans where management has identified 

potential credit risk conditions or circumstances related to a specific individual credit. The specific 

allowance amounts are determined by a method prescribed by FASB ASC 310-10-35-22, Measurement 

of Impairment. The loans identified as impaired will be accounted for in accordance with one of the three 

acceptable valuations as follows: (1) the present value of future cash flows discounted at the loan’s 

effective interest rate; (2) the loan’s observable market price; or (3) the fair value of the collateral, if the 

loan is collateral dependent. For the collateral dependent impaired loans, the Company obtains an 

appraisal to determine the amount of impairment at the date that the loan becomes impaired. If third party 

market data indicates that the value of collateral property values has declined since the most recent 

valuation date, the value of the property is adjusted downward to reflect current market conditions. If the 

fair value of the collateral, less cost to sell, is less than the recorded amount of the loan, the Company 

either recognizes impairment by creating or adjusting an existing valuation allowance with a 

corresponding charge to the provision for loan losses or charge-off the impaired balance on collateral 

dependent loans if it is determined that such loss amount represents a confirmed loss.  

 

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses was adequate as of December 31, 2017 and 

2016. There is, however, no assurance that future loan losses will not exceed the levels provided for in 

the allowance for loan losses and could possibly result in additional charges to the provision for loan 

losses. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued)  
 

The following tables present by portfolio segment, the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the 

years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. The following also presents by loan type, the balance and 

activity for the allowance for loan losses disaggregated on the basis of the Company's impairment 

measurement method and the related recorded investment in loans and leases as of and for the years 

December 31, 2017 and 2016. Recorded investment is defined as the unpaid principal balance, adjusted 

for deferred fees/costs, premiums, discounts, accrued interest, and may also reflect a previous write-

down of the investment. However, for reporting purposes recorded investments for the Company 

approximates unpaid principal balance as the other components are not deemed material. 

 
  

Provision for Recoveries Ending Balance
Loan Losses on Loans Individually 

Beginning charged to Previously Ending   Evaluated for 
(In thousands) Balance Expense Charge-offs Charged-off Balance Impairment
Real Estate loans 1,552$            (149)$                 -$                    -$                    1,403$            6$                       

Commercial loans 395                 76                      (127)                14                   358                 -                          

Consumer loans 25                   -                         -                      -                      25                   -                          

SBA loans 446                 240                    (150)                -                      536                 -                          

Accounts Receivable loans 934                 189                    -                      -                      1,123              -                          

Leasing 20                   (35)                     -                      16                   1                     -                          

Advance Restaurant Financing loans 48                   (40)                     -                      -                      8                     -                          

Overdrafts 9                     39                      (5)                    -                      43                   -                          

Unallocated 118                 (83)                     -                      -                      35                   -                          

Total 3,547$            237$                  (282)$              30$                 3,532$            6$                       

Recapture of Recoveries Ending Balance
Loan Losses on Loans Individually 

Beginning charged to Previously Ending   Evaluated for 
(In thousands) Balance Expense Charge-offs Charged-off Balance Impairment
Real Estate loans 1,385$            529$                  (479)$              117$               1,552$            7$                       

Commercial loans 407                 (22)                     -                      10                   395                 -                          

Consumer loans 28                   (3)                       -                      -                      25                   -                          

SBA loans 261                 185                    -                      -                      446                 -                          

Accounts Receivable loans 1,055              (121)                   -                      -                      934                 -                          

Leasing 3                     (1)                       -                      18                   20                   -                          

Advance Restaurant Financing 85                   (37)                     -                      -                      48                   -                          

Overdrafts 3                     3                        -                      3                     9                     -                          

Unallocated 358                 (240)                   -                      -                      118                 -                          

Total 3,585$            293$                  (479)$              148$               3,547$            7$                       

Allowance for Loan Losses 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Allowance for Loan Losses 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

 
  

Ending Balance Ending Balance
Individually Collectively  

Evaluated for Evaluated for Ending 
(In thousands) Impairment Impairment Balance
Real Estate 1,262$            119,107$           120,369$        

Commercial 97                   38,762               38,859             

Consumer -                      2,918                 2,918               

SBA 1,043              30,648               31,691             

Accounts Receivable 302                 18,808               19,110             

Leasing -                      121                    121                  

Advance Restaurant Financing -                      823                    823                  

Overdrafts -                      285                    285                  

Total 2,704$            211,472$           214,176$        

Ending Balance Ending Balance
Individually Collectively  

Evaluated for Evaluated for Ending 
(In thousands) Impairment Impairment Balance
Real Estate 2,104$            121,884$           123,988$        

Commercial 302                 41,348               41,650             

Consumer -                      3,110                 3,110               

SBA 1,084              27,802               28,886             

Accounts Receivable -                      16,040               16,040             

Leasing -                      174                    174                  

Advance Restaurant Financing -                      6,109                 6,109               

Overdrafts -                      39                      39                    

Total 3,490$            216,506$           219,996$        

Recorded Investment in Loans
As of December 31, 2016

Recorded Investment in Loans
As of December 31, 2017
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

As previously noted, the Company uses several credit quality indicators to manage credit risk in an 

ongoing manner. The Company's primary credit quality indicators are to use an internal credit risk rating 

system that categorizes loans and leases into pass, special mention, or classified categories. Credit risk 

ratings are applied individually to all loans that have significant or unique credit characteristics that benefit 

from a case-by-case evaluation. The following are the definitions of the Company's credit quality 

indicators: 

 

• Pass/Watch: Loans in all classes that comprise the commercial and consumer portfolio segments that 

are not adversely rated, are contractually current as to principal and interest, and are otherwise in 

compliance with the contractual terms of the loan or lease agreement. Management believes that 

there is a low likelihood of loss related to those loans that are considered pass. 

 

• Special Mention: Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves 

management’s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in 

deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the Company’s credit position at some 

future date. 

 

• Substandard: Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth 

and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-

defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the repayment of the debt. They are characterized 

by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 

 

• Doubtful/Loss: Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as 

substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or repayment in full, 

on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. 

The possibility of loss is extremely high, but because of certain important and reasonably specific 

pending factors, which may work towards strengthening of the asset, classification as a loss (and 

immediate charge-off) is deferred until more exact status may be determined. In certain 

circumstances, a doubtful rating will be temporary, while the Company is awaiting an updated 

collateral valuation. In these cases, once the collateral is valued and appropriate margin applied, the 

remaining un-collateralized portion will be charged off. The remaining balance, properly margined, 

may then be upgraded to Substandard, however, must remain on nonaccrual. A loss rating is 

assigned to loans considered un-collectible and of such little value that the continuance as an active 

Company asset is not warranted. This rating does not mean that the loan has no recovery or salvage 

value, but rather that the loan should be charged off now, even though partial or full recovery may be 

possible in the future. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

The following tables present by portfolio segment and by credit quality indicator, the recorded investment 

in the Company’s loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

 
 

  

(In thousands) Pass/Watch Special Mention Substandard Doubtful/Loss Total
Real estate loans 119,107$         409$                  853$                 -$                      120,369$          

Commercial loans 35,735             3,028                 96                     -                        38,859               

Consumer loans 2,918               -                        -                        -                        2,918                 

SBA loans 23,061             6,161                 2,419                50                      31,691               

Accounts Receivable loans 14,231             4,573                 306                   -                        19,110               

Leasing 121                  -                        -                        -                        121                    

Advanced Restaurant Financing 823                  -                        -                        -                        823                    

Overdrafts 285                  -                        -                        -                        285                    

Total 196,281$         14,171$             3,674$              50$                    214,176$          

(In thousands) Pass/Watch Special Mention Substandard Doubtful/Loss Total
Real estate loans 121,883$         -$                      2,105$              -$                      123,988$          

Commercial loans 41,301             12                      337                   -                        41,650               

Consumer loans 3,110               -                        -                        -                        3,110                 

SBA loans 27,802             -                        1,084                -                        28,886               

Accounts Receivable loans 15,900             124                    16                     -                        16,040               

Leasing 174                  -                        -                        -                        174                    

Advanced Restaurant Financing 6,109               -                        -                        -                        6,109                 

Overdrafts 39                    -                        -                        -                        39                      

Total 216,318$         136$                  3,542$              -$                      219,996$          

Internal Risk Rating by Loan Class
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Internal Risk Rating by Loan Class
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
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Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

The following tables present by portfolio segment, an aging analysis and the recorded investment in loans 

and leases past due as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

 
There were no loans that were greater than ninety days past due and still accruing interest at December 

31, 2017 and 2016. The recorded investment in loans and leases on nonaccrual status as of December 

31, 2017 consisted of $412,000 in real estate loans, $96,000 in commercial loans and $317,000 in SBA 

loans. The recorded investment in loans and leases on nonaccrual status as of December 31, 2016 

consisted of $448,000 in real estate loans, $302,000 in commercial loans and $317,000 in SBA loans. 

 
  

 

 

30-59 Days 
Past Due

60-89 Days 
Past Due

Greater Than 
90 Days

Total Past 
Due Current

Total Loans 
Receivable

(In thousands)

Real Estate -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                  120,369$        120,369$        

Commercial -                     -                     -                    -                    38,859            38,859            

Consumer -                     -                     -                    -                    2,918              2,918              

SBA 293                -                     -                    293               31,398            31,691            

Accounts Receivable -                     -                     -                    -                    19,110            19,110            

Leasing -                     -                     -                    -                    121                 121                 

Advanced Restaurant Financing -                     -                     -                    -                    823                 823                 

Overdrafts -                     -                     -                    -                    285                 285                 

          Total 293$              -$                   -$                  293$             213,883$        214,176$        

 

 

30-59 Days 
Past Due

60-89 Days 
Past Due

Greater Than 
90 Days

Total Past 
Due Current

Total Loans 
Receivable

(In thousands)

Real Estate -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                  123,988$        123,988$        

Commercial 9                    -                     -                    9                   41,641            41,650            

Consumer -                     -                     -                    -                    3,110              3,110              

SBA 59                  -                     -                    59                 28,827            28,886            

Accounts Receivable -                     -                     -                    -                    16,040            16,040            

Leasing -                     -                     -                    -                    174                 174                 

Advanced Restaurant Financing -                     -                     -                    -                    6,109              6,109              

Overdrafts -                     -                     -                    -                    39                   39                   

          Total 68$                -$                   -$                  68$               219,928$        219,996$        

Aging Analysis of Past Due Loans
As of December 31, 2017

Aging Analysis of Past Due Loans
As of December 31, 2016
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

The following tables present information related to impaired loans as of and for the years ended 

December 31, 2017 and 2016. There were no impaired loans that were fully reserved with an allowance 

for loan loss for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively:  

 

 
 

 

 

  

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

(In thousands) Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

With no related allowance

  recorded:

Real estate 757$          757$          -$               819$          47$            

Commercial 97              97              -                 350            27              

SBA 1,043         1,043         -                 1,064         128            

Consumer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Accounts Receivable 302            302            -                 -                 -                 

With an allowance recorded:

Real estate 505$          505$          6$              864$          48$            

Commercial -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

SBA -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Consumer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Accounts Receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total:

Real estate 1,262$       1,262$       6$              1,683$       95$            

Commercial 97              97              -                 350            27              

SBA 1,043         1,043         -                 1,064         128            

Consumer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Accounts Receivable 302            302            -                 -                 -                 

Impaired Loans
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

 
Troubled Debt Restructurings 
 

The Company offers a variety of modifications to borrowers. The modification categories offered can 

generally be described in the following categories: 

 

Rate modification – A modification in which the interest rate is changed. 

 

Term modification – A modification in which the maturity date, timing of payments, or frequency of 

payments is changed. 

 

Interest only modification – A modification in which the loan is converted to interest only payments for a 

period of time. 

 

Payment modification – A modification in which the dollar amount of the payment is changed, other than 

an interest only modification described above.  

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

(In thousands) Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

With no related allowance

  recorded:

Real estate 880$          880$          -$               570$          33$            

Commercial 302            302            -                 317            34              

SBA 1,084         1,084         -                 733            77              

With an allowance recorded:

Real estate 1,224$       1,224$       7$              1,231$       96$            

Commercial -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

SBA -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Consumer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Accounts Receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total:

Real estate 2,104$       2,104$       7$              1,801$       129$          

Commercial 302            302            -                 317            34              

SBA 1,084         1,084         -                 733            77              

Consumer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Accounts Receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Impaired Loans
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
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Note 3 – Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (continued) 
 

Combination modification – Any other type of modification, including the use of multiple categories 

above. 

 

As of December 31, 2017, there was one restructured loan in the amount of $96,000 with no allocated 

allowance included within the impaired loan balance as of December 31, 2017. 

 

As of December 31, 2016, there were four restructured loans in the amount of $881,000 with a $3,000 

allocated allowance included within the impaired loan balance as of December 31, 2016. 

 

There were no newly restructured loans that met the definition of a troubled debt restructuring during the 

years ended December 31, 2017.There was one newly restructured loan that met the definition of a 

troubled debt restructuring during the years ended December 31, 2016. There was no pre or post 

modification of principal balance, rate, term or payment associated with this loan. The loan was a 

previously existing troubled debt restructure which matured. Upon maturity a new loan was underwritten 

with new collateral however as the loan remains collateral dependent, the loan still met the definition of a 

troubled debt restructuring. There were no defaults within the first 12 months of restructure on loans 

classified as troubled debt restructurings during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 2016, and there 

are no commitments to lend additional amounts to loans classified as troubled debt restructurings at 

December 31, 2017. 

 

 

Note 4 – Premises and Equipment 
 

Premises and equipment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:  

 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to 

$149,000 and $129,000, respectively. 

 

 

  

(In thousands) 2017 2016
Building improvements 1,478$                  1,437$                  

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,502                    2,482                    

3,980                    3,919                    

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,711)                   (3,635)                   

269$                     284$                     
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 5 – Deposits 
 

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

 

 
Note 6 – Borrowings 
 
The Company issued a series of unsecured term notes totaling $1,750,000 and entered into an unsecured 
loan agreement in the amount of $8,586,000 in connection with retiring $10,336,000 of mandatory 
convertible cumulative preferred stock associated with the Community Development Capital Initiative 
Program. See Note 15.  
 
On May 1, 2017, the Company entered into three unsecured term notes for $1,750,000 with a maturity date 
of May 1, 2022, bearing interest at a rate of 5.00% with interest only paid semi-annually and principal due 
at maturity. At December 31, 2017, the outstanding balance of these notes is $1,750,000 and interest paid 
on these notes was $59,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017.  
 
On August 1, 2017, the Company entered into an unsecured note agreement for $8,586,000 with a maturity 
date of August 14, 2022, and bears interest at a rate of 5.23%. At December 31, 2017, the outstanding 
balance on this note is $8,586,000 and interest paid was $173,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017.  
 
The following is a summary of principal maturities for the next five years and thereafter: 

 

 
  

(In thousands)

Time Deposits 
under $250,000 

Time Deposits 
$250,000 and Over

Matures during year ending December 31,

2018 6,063$                   7,279$                   

2019 1,103                     3,331                     

2020 384                        251                        

2021 79                          -                             

2022 175                        -                             

7,804$                   10,861$                 

Fiscal Years

2018 -$                     

2019 643,950           

2020 858,600           

2021 858,600           

2022 7,974,850        

Total 10,336,000$    

 

 

 

Mission Valley Bancorp 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

 

34 

Note 6 – Borrowings (continued) 
 

The Company has a line of credit available from the FHLB, which is secured by pledged loans. 

Borrowings may include overnight advances as well as loans with terms of up to 30 years. There were no 

outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The Company had 

$81,456,000 and $88,772,000 of borrowing capacity from the FHLB at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 

respectively, based upon loans and securities available to be pledged. The Company had $4,544,000 and 

$6,049,000 of borrowing capacity from the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco (FRB) as of 

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, based upon loans available to be pledged. 

 

The Company has an unsecured revolving line of credit with PCBB providing for federal fund purchases 

up to $8,200,000, $8,000,000 with Zions Bank and up to $5,000,000 with Union Bank. Borrowings are 

payable on demand and interest on outstanding borrowings accrues at rates negotiated at the time of the 

borrowing. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have an outstanding balance 

against these lines of credits. 

 

 
Note 7 – Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures 
 

The Mission Valley Statutory Trust I (“the Trust”) was formed by the Company for the sole purpose of 

issuing trust preferred securities fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. For financial 

reporting purposes, the Trust is not consolidated and the fixed rate junior subordinated deferrable interest 

debentures held by the Trust, issued and guaranteed by the Company, are reflected in borrowings within 

the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition. 

 

On September 16, 2005, the Trust issued $6,000,000 fixed rate Capital Trust Pass-Through Securities 

(TRUPS) with a liquidation value of $1,000 per security for gross proceeds of $6,000,000. The entire 

proceeds of the issuance were invested by the Trust in $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable 

interest debentures issued by the Company with identical maturity, repricing, and payment terms as the 

TRUPS. These debentures represent the sole assets of the Trust and mature on December 15, 2035, 

and bore interest at 5.97% through September 15, 2010 and variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.50% 

from September 15, 2010 through maturity. Interest payments are due on a quarterly basis. The interest 

is deferrable, at the Company’s option for a period of up to twenty consecutive quarterly periods, but in 

any event not beyond September 16, 2035.  
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
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condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 8 – Income Taxes  
 

The provision for income taxes for years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following: 

 

 
A reconciliation of the Company’s effective tax rate with the statutory Federal income tax rate for years 

ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

 

 
Change in deferred taxes of $1,000 and $47,000 related to unrealized gains and losses on investment 

securities available-for-sale during 2017 and 2016, respectively, were allocated to other comprehensive 

income (loss). 

 

The Company recorded a $242,000 charge for the revaluation of its deferred tax asset in 2017 as a result 

of the lowering of the corporate tax rate for federal tax purposes from 34% to 21%.  

  

(In thousands) 2017 2016
Current

Federal 1,544$           1,662$           

State 608                589                

2,152             2,251             

Deferred 

Federal 254                3                    

State 31                  15                  

285                18                  

2,437$           2,269$           

(In thousands)

Statutory Federal income tax rate 2,036$           34.0 % 1,954$           34.0 %

State franchise tax, net of federal benefit 428                7.2 411                7.2

Rate change impact 242                4.0 -                     0.0

Stock compensation (190)               (3.2) -                     0.0

Tax exempt interest (6)                   (1.2) (10)                 (0.2)

BOLI (72)                 (0.1) (83)                 (1.4)

Other (1)                   (3.2) (3)                   (0.1)

2,437$           37.5               % 2,269$           39.5 %

20162017
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Note 8 – Income Taxes (continued) 
 

The following is a summary of the components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2017 and 

2016:  

 

 
Management believes, based upon the Company’s historical performance and future projections, it is 

more likely than not the deferred tax asset will be realized in the normal course of operations and has 

determined that no valuation allowance is necessary as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that 

the tax positions will be sustained on examination by the tax authorities, based on the technical merits of 

the position. The tax benefit is measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% 

likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.  

 

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in other operating 

expenses in the statements of operations. The Company does not anticipate that the amount of 

unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in the next twelve months. There were no 

interest and penalties accrued for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. The Company files 

income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in California.  

  

(In thousands) 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses 432$                        504$                       

State tax 128                          200                         

Unrealized loss on investment securities 65                            89                           

Non-accrual interest 15                            25                           

Deferred compensation 526                          672                         

Other, net -                               164                         

Total deferred tax assets 1,166                       1,654                      

Deferred tax liabilities:

Loan origination costs (606)                         (729)                        

Depreciation and amortization (80)                           (117)                        

Certain prepaid assets (91)                           (110)                        

Total deferred tax liabilities (777)                         (956)                        

Net deferred tax asset 389$                        698$                       
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 9 – Employee Benefit Plans 
 

The Company has established a 401(k) Plan for the benefit of eligible employees, whereby each 

employee being at least twenty-one years of age may become a participant at specified intervals. 

Employees may contribute up to 50% of their annual compensation to the 401(k) Plan each year subject 

to certain limits based on federal tax laws. The Company may elect to make some level of matching 

contributions to the Plan at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Matching contributions of $131,000 

and $126,000 were made for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  

 

The Company sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”) which is a nonqualified 

unfunded pension plan covering a select group of executives. The plan provides a retirement benefit 

payable in the form of a life annuity to the participants, which is based on a specified dollar amount as 

stated in the agreements. The accrued postretirement benefit balance was $1,778,000 and $1,633,000 at 

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is reported in accrued interest payable and other 

liabilities within the consolidated statements of financial condition. The postretirement benefit expense 

reported within salaries, wages and employee benefits in the consolidated statements of income was 

$263,000 and $253,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

 
Note 10 – Share-Based Compensation 
 

The Company approved the 2017 Omnibus Stock Equity Plan (the “Plan”), voted into effect by the 

majority of shares represented at its May 23, 2017 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting and set to expire March 

28, 2027.  Under the Plan, Directors and key employees receive long-term incentives (“Awards”) in the 

form of incentive and nonqualified stock options and restricted stock.  The Plan is administered by the 

Board of Directors, or a Committee to be appointed by the Board, who will select the directors and key 

executives to receive options or awards, the form of those awards, the number of shares or dollar targets, 

and all terms and conditions.  The Plan provides for terms with respect to accelerated vesting should a 

change in control occur. 

 

Stock options expire no later than ten years from the date of grant. Stock Options granted to an Optionee 

who owns stock representing more than ten percent of the voting power of all classes of stock of the 

Company, shall expire not more than five years from the date of grant. No stock options were granted or 

exercised during 2017 and 2016, and there were no stock options outstanding or exercisable for the 

years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

 
The maximum number of shares available for all Awards under the 2017 Plan is up to 600,000 shares of 

the Bank’s common stock. No more than 250,000 shares may be issued pursuant to Awards of restricted 

stock, and no more than 500,000 shares may be issued pursuant to Awards of incentive stock options; 

provided, however, that in no event may the total of all the restricted stock awards, incentive stock options 

and nonqualified stock options granted under the 2017 Plan exceed 600,000.  

  

 

 

 

Mission Valley Bancorp 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

 

38 

Note 10 – Share-Based Compensation (continued) 
 

At December 31, 2017, there were 25,000 unvested restricted stock awards under the prior 2006 equity 

plan. During the year ended December 31, 2017 no restricted stock awards were issued. During the year 

ended December 31, 2016, 29,650 restricted stock awards were issued at a price of $8.17 per share. At 

December 31, 2016 there were 68,150 unvested restricted stock awards. Restricted stock awards are 

ineligible to received stock dividends during the period in which they are unvested. As of December 31, 

2017, there was $90,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock 

awards granted under the plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 

1.2 years.   

 

 
Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of 

business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments 

to extend credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the 

amount recognized on the statements of financial condition. To mitigate this risk posed by these off-

balance sheet exposures, the Company has established an off-balance sheet reserve totaling $55,000 

and $56,000 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, included in accrued interest payable and 

other liabilities on the statements of financial condition. 

 

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial 

instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the 

contractual amount of those instruments. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by 

the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are 

preliminarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, 

bond financing, and similar transactions. All standby letters of credit issued by the Company expire within 

one year of issuance. 

 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 

any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 

termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 

expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 

requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The 

amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on 

management's credit evaluation.  

 

Collateral held varies but may include receivables, inventory, property, plant, and equipment, residential 

properties, and income-producing commercial properties. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
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Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
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Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 
 

A summary of the contractual or notional amounts of the Company's significant off-balance sheet financial 

instruments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

 

 
Litigation – In the ordinary course of business, the Company becomes involved in litigation. 

Management believes, based upon opinions of legal counsel, that the disposition of all suits pending 

against the Company will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or results of 

operations. 

 

Lease commitments – The Company currently leases its administrative offices and branches. The 

Company leases office locations and equipment which have been classified as noncancelable operating 

leases. These lease agreements call for various monthly payments expiring at dates through the year 

2020. Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $366,000 and 

$371,000, respectively.  

 

The following table shows future minimum payments under operating leases with terms in excess of one 

year as of December 31, 2017: 

 

 
  

2017 2016
(In thousands)

Commitments to extend credit 27,234$         38,715$         

Standby letters of credit 1,581             4,503             

28,815$         43,218$         

Year Ending December 31,

(In thousands)

2018 280$                   

2019 134                     

2020 102                     

516$                   
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Note 12 – Transactions with Related Parties 
 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions with certain directors, officers 

and shareholders and certain affiliates of the Company. 

 

As part of its normal banking activities, the Company has extended credit to and received deposits from 

certain members of its Board of Directors, major shareholders, officers as well as entities with which these 

individuals are associated. These related parties had deposits at the Company totaling approximately 

$38,230,000 and $46,013,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There were no related party 

loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016. Management believes these transactions were made in the 

ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and 

collateral requirements, as comparable loans and deposits with other customers, and the loans did not 

involve more than normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features.  

 

 

Note 13 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 

The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which an asset or obligation could be exchanged 

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value estimates are 

made at a specific point in time based on the type of financial instrument and relevant market information. 

 

Because no quoted market price exists for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments, 

the fair values of such financial instruments are derived based on the amount and timing of future cash 

flows, estimated discount rates, as well as management's best judgment with respect to current economic 

conditions. Many of these estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and cannot 

be determined with precision. 

 

The fair value information provided is indicative of the estimated fair values of those financial instruments 

and should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair market value of the Company taken as a whole. 

The disclosures do not address the value of recognized and unrecognized non-financial assets and 

liabilities or the value of future anticipated business. In addition, tax implications related to the realization 

of the unrealized gains and losses could have a substantial impact on these fair value estimates and have 

not been incorporated into any of the estimates. 

 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of significant financial 

instruments which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements at December 

31, 2017 and 2016. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents – The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximate the fair 

value. 

 

Interest bearing deposits in other banks – Interest bearing deposits in other banks are reported at their 

fair value based upon discounting estimated future cash flows using currently offered rates for deposits of 

similar maturities. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
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Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 13 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

Investment securities, held-to-maturity – For securities held-to-maturity, the fair value is determined by 

quoted market prices, where available, or on observable market inputs appropriate for the type of 

security.  

 

Loans – The Company’s loan portfolio is held for investment purposes. Included in the portfolio are loans 

categorized as being impaired. Fair values were calculated by sorting the portfolio by different product 

categories such as Commercial, Real Estate and Consumer and then further segmented into fixed and 

variable indexes and using a discounted present value model. The model uses the Treasury yield curve, 

LIBOR or prime rate as the basis to derive a “risk free” rate modified for credit quality. 

 

Loans held for sale – Fair value is determined based on quoted secondary market prices for similar 

loans, including the implicit fair value of embedded servicing rights. 
 

Bank owned life insurance – The fair value of the bank owned life insurance is the cash surrender value 

which is also its carrying value. 

 
Restricted equity securities – The carrying value of FHLB and PCBB stock approximates fair value 

based on the redemption provisions of the respective stock. 

 

Accrued interest – The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. 

 

Deposits – The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand 

deposits, savings, NOW accounts and money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on 

demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). The fair value of certificates of deposit is 

based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates 

currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The fair value estimates do not include the 

benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of 

borrowing funds in the market.  

 
Notes Payable and Subordinated debentures – The fair values of other borrowed money and 

subordinated debentures are determined using rates currently available to the Company for debt with 

similar terms and remaining maturities.  
 

Off-balance sheet financial instruments – The fair value of commitments to extend credit is based 

upon the difference between the interest rate at which we are committed to make the loans and the 

current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the 

same remaining maturities, adjusted for the estimated volume of loan commitments actually expected to 

close. The fair value of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit were not significant at 

either December 31, 2017 or 2016, as these instruments predominantly have adjustable terms and are of 

a short-term nature.  
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Note 13 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

The following tables present information about the level in the fair value hierarchy for the Company’s 

assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. All financial 

assets and financial liabilities for which the carrying amount equals fair value are considered by the 

Company to be Level 1 measurements in the fair value hierarchy. Fair values determined by Level 2 

inputs utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar instruments in active 

markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-

derived valuations whose inputs are observable and can be corroborated by market data. Level 3 inputs 

are unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair 

value of the assets or liabilities. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into 

different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which 

the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of 

a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors 

specific to the asset or liability. 
 

 
  

 Carrying       
Value 

 Estimated  
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 54,640$              54,640$        54,640$           -$                   -$                     

Interest bearing deposit in other banks 2,725                  2,706            -                       -                     2,706               

Investment securities, held-to-maturity 79                       79                 -                       79                  -                       

Loans, net 209,791              213,990        -                       -                     213,990           

Loans, held for sale 32,584                32,584          -                       32,584           -                       

Bank owned life insurance 9,754                  9,754            9,754               -                     -                       

Restricted equity securities 1,874                  1,874            1,874               -                     -                       

Accrued interest receivable 900                     900               900                  -                     -                       

Financial Liabilities
Deposits 280,247$            262,258$      -$                     -$                   262,258$         

Subordinated debentures 6,186                  6,168            -                       -                     6,168               

Notes payable 10,336                9,970            -                       -                     9,970               

Accrued interest payable 5                         5                   5                      -                     -                       

(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements Using
2017
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 13 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

 
 

Securities available for sale – The table below presents the balance of securities available-for-sale, 

which is measured at fair value on a recurring basis. An independent third party performs market 

valuations of the Company’s securities available-for-sale. The fair values are determined by using several 

sources for valuing securities. The techniques include pricing models that vary based on the type of asset 

being valued and incorporate available trade, bid, and other market information. Market valuation sources 

include observable market inputs and are therefore considered Level 2 inputs for purposes of determining 

the fair values.  

 

Impaired loans and other real estate owned – The loan balance shown in the table below represents 

all of the Company’s impaired loans for which impairment was recognized during the period. These loans 

are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Impaired loans that are collateral-dependent are 

measured based on the fair value of their collateral while non collateral-dependent loans are measured 

on a discounted cash flow basis. The fair value of each loan’s collateral is generally based on estimated 

market prices from an independently prepared appraisal, which is then adjusted for the cost related to 

liquidating such collateral. The estimated fair value of other real estate owned is based on the appraised 

values or other information for the estimated fair values of such assets. We generally use an 8-10% 

discount for selling costs which is applied to all properties, regardless of size. Appraised values may be 

adjusted to reflect changes in market conditions that have occurred subsequent to the appraisal date, or 

for revised estimates regarding the timing or cost of the property sale. These adjustments are based on 

qualitative judgments made by management on a case-by-case basis. There have been no significant 

changes in the valuation techniques during the period ended December 31, 2017. 

  

 Carrying       
Value 

 Estimated  
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 52,311$              52,311$        52,311$           -$                   -$                     

Interest bearing deposit in other banks 6,485                  6,472            -                       -                     6,472               

Investment securities, held-to-maturity 245                     245               -                       245                -                       

Loans, net 215,778              218,936        -                       -                     218,936           

Loans, held for sale 23,615                25,119          -                       25,119           -                       

Bank owned life insurance 6,557                  6,557            6,557               -                     -                       

Restricted equity securities 1,660                  1,660            1,660               -                     -                       

Accrued interest receivable 764                     764               764                  -                     -                       

Financial Liabilities
Deposits 277,979$            264,023$      -$                     -$                   264,023$         

Subordinated debentures 6,186                  6,114            -                       -                     6,114               

Accrued interest payable 11                       11                 11                    -                     -                       

2016
Fair Value Measurements Using

(In thousands)
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Note 13 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

The following tables present information about the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

on a recurring and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and indicates the fair value 

hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair value. In general, fair 

values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments that are 

highly liquid, observable and actively traded in over-the-counter markets.  

 
 

 
 

Note 14 – Regulatory Matters  
 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 

federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory – 

and possibly additional discretionary – actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct 

material effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines, 

the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative 

measures of the Company’s and the Bank’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as 

calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s and the Bank’s capital classifications 

are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other 

factors. 

 

  

(In thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Recurring items:

Mortgage backed securities 13,627$             -$                      13,672$               -$                      

Municipal investments 396                    396                     

Mutual funds 782                    782                    -                         -                        

14,805$             782$                  14,068$               -$                      

Nonrecurring items:

Impaired loans 2,704$               -$                      -$                        2,704$               

(In thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Recurring items:

Mortgage backed securities 13,872$             -$                      13,872$               -$                      

Municipal investments 504                    -                        504                     -                        

Mutual funds 782                    782                    -                         -                        

15,158$             782$                  14,376$               -$                      

Nonrecurring items:

Impaired loans 3,490$               -$                      -$                        3,490$               

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 14 – Regulatory Matters (continued) 
 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and 

the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of Tier 1 capital (as 

defined in the regulations) to total average assets (as defined), and minimum ratios of Tier 1, common 

equity Tier 1 and total capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). Management believes, as 

of December 31, 2017 and 2016, that the Company and the Bank meets all capital requirements to which 

it is subject. 

 

The Bank has been notified by its regulator that, as of its most recent regulatory examination, the Bank is 

regarded as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. Such 

determination has been made based on the Bank’s Tier 1, common equity Tier 1, total capital and 

leverage ratios. There have been no conditions or events since this notification that management believes 

would change the Bank’s categorization as well capitalized under the ratios listed below. 

 

The Company’s and the Bank’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios are (dollars in thousands): 

 

 
  

Mission Valley Bancorp

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio  Amount   Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2017

Total Capital Ratio 39,718$       15.60% 20,394$      8.00% 25,493$      10.00%

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 36,527         14.30% 15,296        6.00% 20,394        8.00%

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio 36,527         11.20% 13,025        4.00% 16,282        5.00%

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 30,527         12.00% 11,472        4.50% 16,570        6.50%

As of December 31, 2016
Total Capital Ratio 46,957$       18.20% 20,652$      8.00% 25,815$      10.00%

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 43,725         16.90% 15,489        6.00% 20,652        8.00%

Tier 1 Leverage ratio 43,725         13.50% 12,932        4.00% 16,165        5.00%

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 27,389         10.60% 11,617        4.50% 16,780        6.50%

Amount of Capital Required

Actual
Minimum Capital 

Requirement

Minimum To Be Well-
Capitalized Under Prompt 

Corrective Action 
Provisions
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Note 14 – Regulatory Matters (continued) 
 

 
 
The Bank is required to establish and phase-in a “conservation buffer,” consisting of a common equity 

Tier 1 capital amount equal to 2.5% of risk-weighted assets by 2019. As of December 31, 2017, the 

“conservation buffer” amount was 1.25% of risk-weighted assets. An institution that does not meet the 

conservation buffer requirement will be subject to restrictions on certain activities including payment of 

dividends, stock repurchases, and discretionary bonuses to executive officers. The phase-in began in 

2016 and increases until fully phased-in by 2019. 

 

The difference in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio between Mission Valley Bancorp and Mission 

Valley Bank is due to the TRUPS securities disclosed in Note 7. 

 

 

Note 15 – U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program, Community Development Capital Initiative 
Program and Mandatory Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock 
 

During 2009, the Company was a participant in the U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”), 

under which the Company issued preferred stock shares to the Treasury for an aggregate purchase price 

of $5,500,000. On August 20, 2010, Mission Valley Bancorp completed an exchange of its CPP capital 

into the Community Development Capital Initiative (“CDCI”) program. Under both programs the Company 

is subject to certain restrictions and requirements, such as restrictions on repurchases of preferred stock 

shares and payment of dividends, requirements relating to executive compensation, and corporate 

governance practices. 

 
Mission Valley Bancorp was able to participate in the CDCI program because the bank was recognized 

as a Community Development Financial Institution (“CDFI”) since 2006. The CDFI Fund was created for 

the purpose of promoting economic revitalization and community development through investment in, and 

assistance to, community development financial institutions (CDFIs). 

  

Mission Valley Bank

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio  Amount   Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2017

Total Capital Ratio 48,401$       19.09% 20,289$      8.00% 25,361$      10.00%

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 45,226         17.83% 15,217        6.00% 20,289        8.00%

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio 45,226         13.93% 12,988        4.00% 16,235        5.00%

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 45,226         17.83% 11,413        4.50% 16,485        6.50%

As of December 31, 2016
Total Capital Ratio 45,533$       17.71% 20,568$      8.00% 25,710$      10.00%

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 42,314         16.46% 15,426        6.00% 20,568        8.00%

Tier 1 Leverage ratio 42,314         13.13% 12,894        4.00% 16,118        5.00%

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 42,314         16.46% 11,569        4.50% 16,711        6.50%

Amount of Capital Required

Minimum Capital 
Requirement

Minimum To Be Well-
Capitalized Under Prompt 

Corrective Action 
ProvisionsActual
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 15 – U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program, Community Development Capital Initiative 
Program and Mandatory Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock (continued) 
 

As a result, 5,500 shares of Series A, 5% fixed rate, non-voting, non-cumulative perpetual preferred 

shares were exchanged for 5,500 shares of Series C, 2% fixed rate, non-voting, noncumulative perpetual 

preferred shares. This was a noncash transaction in 2010. 

 

On September 24, 2010, Mission Valley Bancorp received an additional $4,836,000 in capital via the 

CDCI program. As a result, 4,836 shares of Series D, 2% fixed rate non-voting non-cumulative perpetual 

preferred shares were issued for an aggregate issue price of $4,836,000. Series C and D preferred 

shares qualify as Tier 1 capital. 

 

Series C and D have a dividend rate of 2% per annum for eight years escalating to 9% for an additional 

five years. Series C and D had quarterly dividend payments payable on each February 15, May 15, 

August 15 and November 15. During 2017 and 2016, the Company declared and paid dividends on 

Series C and D in the cumulative amount of $159,000 and $207,000, respectively. 

 

During the third quarter of 2017 the Company fully redeemed its $10,336,000 Community Development 

Capital Investment (CDCI) (Formerly TARP/CPP) to the Treasury using proceeds from a private debt 

issuance in anticipation of the scheduled CDCI rate increase to 9% in 2018.  See Note 6. 

 

 

Note 16 – Subsequent Events 
 

The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all subsequent events 

(transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial 

statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the 

balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the consolidated financial 

statements. The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that 

provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after the 

balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. The 

Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 16, 2018, which is the date the consolidated 

financial statements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events that required 

disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of operations - Mission Valley Bank (the “Bank”) was formed during 2001 and on May 24, 2005, 
the shareholders of the Bank approved the exchange of common stock in Mission Valley Bank for 
common stock of a newly formed holding company, Mission Valley Bancorp (the “Company”). The 
transaction was consummated on August 20, 2005.  The Bank is the Company’s only subsidiary and it is 
wholly owned by the Company.  The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and 
corporate customers through the Bank. The Bank has three branches located in Sun Valley, Valencia and 
Santa Clarita, California.  The Company has been authorized by the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco to engage in lending activities separate from the Bank, but to date has not done so. 
 
Mission Valley Bank is a state chartered depository institution subject to regulation and examination by 
the California Department of Business Oversight (“DBO”), formerly the Department of Financial 
Institutions and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).   
 
Basis of presentation and consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.  The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mission Valley Bank.  All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
In 2005, the Company issued $6,186,000 of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures through 
Mission Valley Statutory Trust I.  The Company follows generally accepted accounting principles that 
determines when variable interest entities should be consolidated and determined that the Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I should not be consolidated. As a result, the consolidated statements of financial 
condition include $6,186,000 as junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures. Also included in 
other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition is $186,000 of investments in Mission 
Valley Statutory Trust I, which is reported using the cost method.  
 
Subsequent events - The Company recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of all 
subsequent events (transactions or events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are issued) that provide additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not recognize 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance 
sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to 
be issued.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2014, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  There were no subsequent events that 
required disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
  

 
 
 

 
 

Investor Information: 
 
Common Stock: 
Effective July 23, 2014, Mission Valley Bancorp’s stock began trading on the OTCQX 
market under the symbol “MVLY”.  As of December 31, 2017 there were 
approximately 170 shareholders of record and 3,208,365 shares of common. 
 
 
 
Stock Information: 
D. A. Davidson & Co. 
Michael Natzic, Senior Vice President 
Kathy E. Ehlers, Associate Vice President 
909 584-4500 / 800 288-2811 
 
 
 
Stock Transfer Agent: 
Shareholders with inquiries regarding accounts, lost stock certificates or changes of 
address, may contact Linda Rousseau, Corporate Secretary of Mission Valley 
Bancorp at (818) 394-2331 during regular business hours or Computershare at  
(800) 962-4284 24 hours a day.   
 
Written correspondence may be sent to:   
 

Computershare 
Post Office Box 30170 
College Station, Texas 77842-3170 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Financial StatementS

Corporate Offices & Sun Valley Branch Office
9116 Sunland Boulevard | Sun Valley, CA 91352 

(818) 394-2300

Centre Pointe Branch & Business Banking Office
26415 Carl Boyer Drive | Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

(661) 253-9500

www.MissionValleyBank.com

2017 Financial StatementS
MISSION VALLEY BANCORP


